
 

MINUTES 

CITY OF BRADENTON 
CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING 

9 a.m. Nov. 4, 2015 

 
The City of Bradenton City Council met in special session in the City Hall 
Council Chamber, 101 Old Main Street, Bradenton, Florida, at 9 a.m. 
Wednesday, Nov. 4, 2015. 
 
Present: Mayor Wayne Poston; Vice Mayor Ward II Gene Brown; Councilman 
Ward III Patrick Roff; Councilman Ward IV Bemis Smith; and Councilman 
Ward V Harold Byrd, Jr. 
 
City Officials: Carl Callahan, City Administrator; Claude Tankersley, Public 

Works and Utilities Director and Bill Lisch, City Attorney. 

Mayor Poston opened the meeting at 9:02 a.m. 

AFSCME contract 

City Administrator Carl Callahan distributed copies of the AFSCME contract 

and explained that it represents a 3-year deal that covers about 140 unionized 

employees in the Public Works & Utilities Department. He said changes in the 

contract address a larger negotiating committee, bi-weekly dues collections, 

employee promotions, members having free access to their own personnel 

files, members can serve on Benefits Committee without losing pay, 

bereavement leave clarification, discipline in a timely matter and pay increase 

of 60 cents an hour in this first year and 3% each of the next two years. It does 

not include retroactive pay. 

City Administrator Callahan added that the union has ratified the contract. 

MOTION TO APPROVE the AFSCME contract was made by Councilman 

Patrick Roff, seconded by Vice Mayor Gene Brown and approved 4-0 

(Councilman Gene Gallo was not in attendance). 

Evers Reservoir property – WCI contract 



City Administrator Callahan gave a brief timeline of the “Reservoir property,” 

starting with its acquisition in 1996 and developer Pat Neal buying a portion 

of it in 2005 for the purpose of completing the Honore Avenue extension, 

followed by a workshop discussion to consider declaring it surplus in 2014. 

Interest in the land prompted the City to put the land out for bid in February 

and interested developers met with County officials with their building plans 

(the reservoir property is owned by the City but located in Manatee County) in 

the Spring. In June, the City narrowed down the list of bidders and eventually 

selected WCI. 

Today’s special meeting was called at the Council’s Oct. 28 regular meeting 

because some Council members did not want to approve the WCI contract 

because it wasn’t on the Oct. 28 agenda. 

City Attorney Bill Lisch said the contract is ready for action from the City. If 

approved, the said the developers would next proceed to the Manatee 

County’s planning department. 

Mayor Wayne Poston asked if there were any comments or discussion. City 

Attorney Lisch added that the meeting is public but it’s not a public hearing. 

Councilman Patrick Roff showed an overhead of the site and its location to the 

City’s watershed and said he’s heard from concerned residents about this. But 

it’s not true that the development will have a significant impact on the 

watershed, he said. He said it’s surplus land outside the City limits that can be 

sold to benefit City residents by using the funds to improve the City’s roads. 

Councilman Bemis Smith said he’s open to looking at a variety of ways to use 

the money. He thanked Bill Evers, the City’s former mayor who was in 

attendance at this meeting, for having the foresight to build the City reservoir. 

He said the City has studies ways to expand it for the future and the best and 

most cost-effective method is building underground aquifer storage reserves 

(ASR). 

Public Works & Utilities Director Claude Tankersley agreed and said the ASR 

wells are under construction and will more than double the City’s amount of 

stored water. 



Councilman Smith said figures show the ASRs will support a city of nearly 

75,000 residents, which Director Tankersley confirmed. The City has about 

50,000 residents and is in a comfortable position moving forward, he said. 

Councilman Smith said he considered those factors when making his decision 

to surplus the land near the reservoir. He said WCI’s development plan called 

for a lower density than most and their offer to buy the land was competitive. 

Administrator Callahan noted that there is still land available for future 

expansion, specifically the ASR wells. 

Vice Mayor Gene Brown asked the amounts of top three bids, which 

Administrator Callahan said ranged from $10 million to $11 million. Vice 

Mayor Brown said he agreed with the comments made by Councilman Smith 

and said this plan is a win now for the City residents that also protects the 

water supply 30 years down the road. 

Councilman Harold Byrd agreed. He said the WCI development plan of 350 

units was the best of the bidders. He said it was still a difficult decision to sell 

the land but believes the responsible development offers protection down the 

road. 

MOTION TO APPROVE the contract from WCI to buy the reservoir 

property was made by Councilman Byrd, seconded by Councilman Roff 

and approved 4-0. 

Stephen Thompson, attorney for WCI, thanked the Council and said his group 

would be working closely with the City as the development moves through the 

County’s approval process. 

Administrator Callahan noted that it was the County-approved sales tax that 

helped the City purchase this land for $800,000 in 1996 and that another sales 

tax would be beneficial. 

County Commissioner John Chappie was in the audience and said the City is 

lucky to have a Public Works Director like Claude Tankersley. Commissioner 

Chappie said he heard Director Tankersley speak at a Manatee County 

Chamber retreat and was impressed. 



In response to the positive comments from City Council and staff, Mr. Evers 

thanked them but said credit belongs to the City Council and staff at the time, 

including Attorney Lisch and Administrator Callahan. Mr. Evers said he 

doesn’t agree with the Council’s decision today but that he respects it. 

The special meeting was adjourned at 9:40 a.m. 


